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  NOTICE OF THE 17th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 17th Annual General Meeting of the members of M/s B R D 

Car World Limited (“the company”) will be held on Tuesday, the 30th Day of September, 

2025 at 3.30 P.M through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) to transact the following business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1 Adoption of Annual Accounts 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

year ended 31st March, 2025 and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon and to 

pass the following resolution, with or without modification as ordinary resolution. 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st 

March, 2025 and the reports of the Directors and the Auditors for the financial year ended 

31st March, 2025, placed before the 17th Annual General Meeting be and are hereby 

received, considered and adopted”. 

 

2 Re-Appointment of Mr. Jijin Chanayil Surendran (DIN: 03305487), as Director of the 

Company liable to retire by rotation 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification 

as ordinary resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 

Jijin Chanayil Surendran (DIN: 03305487), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers 

himself for reappointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director of the company.” 

 

3 Appointment of statutory auditor and fix their remuneration in this regard, to pass the 

following resolution, with or without modifications as an ordinary resolution  

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification 

as ordinary resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139, 142 of Companies Act 2013 and 

other applicable provisions, if any and Company (Audit and Auditors) Rule 2014 made 

thereunder and other applicable rules (including any statutory modifications) or re-

enactment thereof for the time being in force) Balan and Co (Registration number: 000340S) 

Chartered Accountants, Bank Road, Aluva Ernakulam-683101 be and is hereby 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company commencing from the conclusion of 



 
 

this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of AGM to be held in the Financial Year 

2029-2030 at a remuneration to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

4. Regularization of Appointment of Additional Director Mr.  William Varghese Chungath 

Cheru (DIN: 00074708) as Director of the Company 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 152, 160 and all other 

applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment there off for the time being in force) and other applicable laws, Mr. William 

Varghese Chungath Cheru (DIN: 00074708), who was appointed as Additional Director of 

the Company with effect from 23.06.2025 by the Board of Directors pursuant to section 161 

of the Act and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and who 

holds office only up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company be and 

is hereby appointed as a Non- Executive Director of the Company, whose period of office 

will be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation.  

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr. Jijin C Surendran, Managing Director of the company be and 

is hereby authorized to file/sign/execute/ to do all such acts, deeds, and things as may be 

necessary to give effect to the aforementioned resolution along with the filing of necessary 

e-forms on behalf of the Board of Directors.” 

 

5. Regularization of Appointment of Additional Director Mr.  Porathur Antony Devassy 

(DIN: 00075226) as Director of the Company 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 152, 160 and all other 

applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment there off for the time being in force) and other applicable laws Mr.  Porathur 

Antony Devassy (DIN: 00075226), who was appointed as Additional Director of the Company 

with effect from 23.06.2025 by the Board of Directors pursuant to section 161 of the Act 

and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and who holds 

office only upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company be and is 



 
 

hereby appointed as a Non- Executive Director of the Company, whose period of office will 

be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation.  

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr. Jijin C Surendran, Managing Director of the company be 

and is hereby authorized to file/sign/execute/ to do all such acts, deeds, and things as may 

be necessary to give effect to the aforementioned resolution along with the filing of 

necessary e-forms on behalf of the Board of Directors.” 

 

6. To approve transactions under section 185 of the companies act, 2013 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended by 

Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017) (“said sections”) read with section 186 of Companies 

Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment thereof for the time being 

in force) the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for 

advancing loan and / or giving of guarantee(s), and / or providing of security(ies) in 

connection with any loan taken / to be taken from financial institutions / banks / insurance 

companies / other investing agencies or any other person(s) / bodies corporate by any 

entity (said entity(ies) covered under the category of ‘a person in whom any of the director 

of the company is interested’ as specified in the explanation to Sub-section (b) of Section 2 

of the said section, of an aggregate outstanding amount not exceeding Rs.100 Crore/- 

(Rupees Hundred Crores only). 

  

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of 

Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”, which term shall be 

deemed to include any committee thereof) be and is hereby authorized to negotiate, 

finalise and agree to the terms and conditions of the aforesaid Loans / Guarantees / 

Securities, and to take all necessary steps, to execute all such documents, instruments and 

writings and to do all necessary acts, deed and things in order to comply with all the legal 

and procedural formalities and to do all such acts, deeds or things incidental or expedient 

thereto and as the Board may think fit and suitable.” 

 

7. To borrow money in excess of the prescribed limit under section 180(1)(c) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution 

as a Special Resolution: -  



 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 180(1) (C) of the Companies Act 2013, 

including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 

force and applicable provisions if any and subject to the approval of shareholders in the 

general meeting, the consent of the shareholders be and is hereby give to borrow money 

with or without security up to Rs.100 Crores from banks/financial institutions and any other 

person(s) on such terms and conditions as the board of directors may think fit, where the 

money(ies) if already borrowed by the company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to 

be obtained from the company’s banker in the ordinary course of its business), may exceed 

the aggregate of the paid up share capital, free reserves and securities premium of the 

company, (reserves not set apart for any specific purpose) subject to condition that the total 

amount of money(ies) in aggregate so borrowed shall not at any time exceed the limit of Rs. 

100 crores.  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to take all such steps as 

may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” 

 

8. Sell, lease or otherwise disposal of the whole, or substantially the whole, of the 

undertaking 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following resolution 

as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1) (a) of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014, and subject 

to other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory 

modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the provisions of the 

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, and such other approvals, 

consents and permissions being obtained from the appropriate authorities to the extent 

applicable and necessary, consent be and is hereby accorded to sell, lease or otherwise 

disposal of the whole, or substantially the whole, of the assets of the Company including 

and not limited to fixed immovable properties for such consideration and on such terms and 

conditions as the Board of Directors of the Company consider beneficial to the Company.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to finalize the terms and 

conditions and take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory or 

contractual or otherwise, if any, required in relation to the above and to settle all the 

matters arising out of and incidental thereto, and to sign and execute all deeds, 

applications, documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company and 



 
 

generally to do all such acts, deeds and things that may be necessary, proper and expedient 

or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution.” 

 

9.  Remuneration to Managing Director in excess of 5% of the Net Profit of the company 

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 

Resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT in terms of provisions contained in Sections  197, 198, Schedule V and 

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Rules 

framed thereunder, including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, and 

subject to such other approvals as may be necessary, approval of the Members be and is 

hereby accorded for payment of remuneration to Mr. Jijin Chanayil Surendran (DIN 

03305487), Managing Director of the Company as set out in the Explanatory Statement, in 

excess of prescribed limit of 5% of the Net Profits of the Company computed in accordance 

with Section 198 of the Act, in any financial year(s) during his tenure as the Managing 

Director of the Company; 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or the Company Secretary of the Company be and 

is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and take all such steps as may be 

necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 

10. Approval of Related Party transaction with M/s Rajputana Investment & Finance 

Limited 

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 

Resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and any other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), read with Rule 15 of the Companies 

(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,  (including any amendment(s), statutory 

modification(s), variation(s), and/or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force) based on 

recommendation from audit committee, the approval of Shareholders be and is hereby 

accorded to  board of directors of the company to renew park and sale commission 

agreement with M/s Rajputana Investment & Finance Limited for the financial year 2025-

2026 (With retrospective effect from 01.04.2025) subject to fixed commission of 

Rs.150000.00/- on monthly basis and Also variable commission to  M/s Rajputana 

Investment & Finance Limited. based on the sale performance”. 



 
 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or Chief Financial Officer of the company 

be and is hereby authorized to sign and execute the agreement and to take all the necessary 

actions to implement the said resolution”. 

 

11. To give Loans, investments, provide guarantees or securities in excess of limits 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification the following resolution 

as Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier resolutions if any to this effect and pursuant to 

the provisions of 186 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014, (including any 

statutory modification thereof for the time being in force and as may be enacted from time 

to time), the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded, to give loans to any 

person or any other body Corporate and/ or give any guarantee or provide security in 

connection with a loan to any person or any other body Corporate and / or acquire by way 

of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of anybody corporate up to an 

aggregate amount not exceeding Rs.100 Crore (Rupees Hundred Crores) in their absolute 

discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, provided that such loans 

are utilized by the borrowing company for its principal business activities. 

  

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of 

the Company be and is hereby authorized to take from time to time all decisions and such 

steps as may be necessary for giving loans, guarantees or providing securities or for making 

such investments and to execute such documents, deeds, writings, papers and/or 

agreements as may be required and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may 

in its absolute discretion, deem fit, necessary or appropriate.” 

 

By order of the board of directors 

   M/s B R D Car World Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Mr. Jijin Chanayil Surendran 

Managing Director (Din: 03305487) 

 

Place: Thrissur 

Date: 04.09.2025 



 
 

 

Notes 

 Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102of the Companies Act, 2013 relating 

to special business to be transacted at the AGM is annexed hereto. 

 

 Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board 

resolution, authorizing their representative (s) to attend and vote at the Annual 

General Meeting pursuant to the provisions of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 

2013 

 

 As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, 

the general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated 

April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 

dated May 05, 2020. The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video 

conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM).  Hence, Members can attend 

and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM 

 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as 

amended) the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in 

respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the 

Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-

Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as 

well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 

 

 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after 

the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the 

procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM 

through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come 

first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% 

or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. 



 
 

who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come 

first served basis. 

 

 MCA General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 05.05.2020, General Circular No. 02/2022 

dated 05.05.2022, General Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28.12.2022 and General 

Circular No. 09/2023 dated 25.09.2023 after due examination, it has been decided 

to allow companies whose AGMs are due in the Year 2024 or 2025, to conduct their 

AGMs through VC or OAVM on or before 30th September, 2025 in accordance with 

the requirements laid down in Para 3 and Para 4 of the General Circular No. 

20/2020 dated05.05.2020. 

 

 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be 

counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under section 103 of the 

Companies Act 2013. 

 

 Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint 

proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM/EGM. 

However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a 

State or body corporate can attend the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and cast their 

votes through e-voting. 

 

 Since the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the route map of the venue of the 

Meeting is not annexed hereto. 

 

 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain 

closed from September 24, 2025 to September 30, 2025 (both days inclusive). 

 

 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 

13, 2020, the Notice of 17th AGM along with Annual Report 2024-25 has been 

uploaded on the website of the Company at www.brdcarworld.com.  

 

 The Notice along with Annual Report also disseminated on the website of CDSL 

(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the 

AGM/EGM) i.e., www.evotingindia.com. 

 

http://www.brdcarworld.com./
http://www.evotingindia.com/


 
 

 The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated 

April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular 

No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. 

 

DISPATCH OF NOTICE THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE 

 In compliance with the MCA Circulars dated May 12, 2020, Notice of 17th AGM along 

with Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 

Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. 

Members may note that the Notice of 17th AGM along with Annual Report 2024-25 

will also be available on the Company’s website www.brdcarworld.com .  

 For receiving all communication from the Company electronically: Members holding 

shares in physical mode and who have not registered/ updated their email address, 

Bank particulars, Residential status or request for transmission of shares including its 

changes etc. with the Company, are requested to register/ update the same by 

writing a request letter to the Company with details of folio number and attaching a 

self-attested copy of PAN Card, Passbook/ cancelled Cheque etc. at 

csbcw@brdcarworld.net or to Share Transfer Agent of the Company, M/s. MUFG 

Intime India Private Limited, “Surya”, 35, Mayflower Avenue, Behind Senthil Nagar, 

Sowripalayam Road, Coimbatore- 641028, TN Tel: +91 422 4958995, 2539835/836, 

Fax: +91 422 2539837, Email: coimbatore@in.mpms.mufg.com 

 In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as 

the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the 

Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

 The Notice of 17th AGM along with Annual Report 2024-25 of the Company 

circulated to the Members of the Company will be made available on the Company’s 

website at www.brdcarworld.com.  

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-

VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER 

 Shareholders will be provided with the facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM 

through the CDSL e-voting system. Shareholders may access the same at 

https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members Login by using the 

remote e- voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 

shareholders/members Login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed. 

 

http://www.brdcarworld.com/
mailto:csbcw@brdcarworld.net
http://www.brdcarworld.com/
https://www.evotingindia.com/


 
 

 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 

meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better 

experience. 

 Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good 

speed       to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 

Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 

Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable 

Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the 

meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at 

least 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, Demat account number/folio 

number, email id, mobile number to csbcw@brdcarworld.net.  

 The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may 

send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, Demat 

account number/folio number, email id, mobile number etc. to 

csbcw@brdcarworld.net. These queries will be replied by the company suitably by 

email. 

 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be 

allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 

 Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 

have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system 

available during the AGM. 

 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the 

AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through 

VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered 

invalid as the facility of   e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 

shareholders attending the meeting. 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED 

WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 

mailto:csbcw@brdcarworld.net.
mailto:csbcw@brdcarworld.net


 
 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 

to csbcw@brdcarworld /coimbatore@in.mpms.mufg.com 

For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP). 

For Individual Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 

respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual 

meetings through Depository. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND VOTING 

ELECTRONICALLY ARE AS UNDER 

 The remote voting period begins on Saturday, September 27, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and 

ends on Monday, September 29, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. During this period shareholders’ 

of the Company may cast their vote electronically. The Company has fixed Saturday, 

Tuesday 23, 2025 as the cutoff date for determining voting right of shareholders 

entitled to   participate in the e-voting process. 

 Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Members, the member shall not be 

allowed to change it subsequently. 

 The members attending the meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote 

e- voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting; 

 The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may 

also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 Mr. M. Vasudevan, Practicing Company Secretary, having CP number 2437 has been 

appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and 

transparent manner. 

 The Results of voting shall be declared forthwith by the Managing Director or a 

person authorized by him. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s 

Consolidated Report          shall be placed on the Company’s website  

www.brdcarworld.com and on the website of CDSL. 

 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders 

holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of 

shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 

through their existing user id and password. Option will be 



 
 

holding securities 

in Demat mode 

with CDSL 

made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 

authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  

www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New 

System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see 

the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the e-Voting 

is in progress as per the information provided by company. On 

clicking the e-Voting option, the user will be able to see e-

Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is 

also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 

Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 

providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 

is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on 

login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration 

option. 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-

Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page. The 

system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 

registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 

After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-

Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to 

directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with NSDL 

Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please 

visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on 

a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 

e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 

under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new 

screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 

Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to 

see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/


 
 

Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you 

will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select 

“Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 

page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 

which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A 

new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 

your sixteendigit demat account number hold with NSDL), 

Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 

to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name 

and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their Depository 

Participants (DP) 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat    account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 

option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 

you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 

provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


 
 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login 

can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 

request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login 

can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll 

free no: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

 

 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders 

and shareholders other than individual holding in demat form; 

1. For availing the e-voting facility, the Shareholders should first logon to the e-

voting website www.evotingindia.com.  

2. Click on “Shareholders” module. 

3. Now enter your User ID 

a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c) Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 

registered with the Company. 

4. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

5. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to 

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, 

then your existing password is to be used. 

6. If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in 

Demat. 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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PAN 

Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 

number sent by Company/RTA or contact B R D Car World Ltd/M/s. S.K.D.C 

Consultants Limited. 

Dividend Bank 

Details OR 

Date of Birth 

(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to 

login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details 

field. 

 

 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 

 Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company 

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now 

reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter 

their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to 

be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company 

on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through 

CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 

other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 

 For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-

voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 

 Click on the EVSN for the relevant B R D CAR WORLD LIMITED on which you choose 

to vote. 

 

 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same 

the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option 

YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent 

to the Resolution. 

 



 
 

 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 

details. 

 

 After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, 

else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 

your vote. 

 You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option 

on the Voting page. 

 If a Demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID 

and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as 

prompted          by the system. 

 There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be 

made available to scrutinizer for verification. 

 

ADDITIONAL FACILITY FOR NON – INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS AND CUSTODIANS FOR 

REMOTE VOTING ONLY 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and 

Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves 

in the “Corporates” module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 

should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the 

admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) 

for which they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink 

in case of any wrong mapping. 

 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney 

(POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded 

in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 Alternatively non-individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the 

relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 

signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 

Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; csbcw@brdcarworld.net, if 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
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they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting 

system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 

DECLARATION OF VOTING RESULTS 

 The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Annual 

General Meeting, first count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the 

votes cast through remote e-voting and make not later than 2 days of conclusion of 

the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favor or 

against, if any, to the Chairman and/or Director or a person authorized by him in 

writing who shall counter sign the same. 

 The results shall be declared forthwith upon receipt of the Scrutinizer’s Report. The 

results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 

website www.brdcarworld.com. and on the website of CDSL. 

 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-

Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 

free no. 1800 22 55 33. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed 

to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Service (India) Limited, A wing, 

25th floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East) 

Mumbai-400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 

1800 22 55 33. 
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

Item No: 4 

Regularization of Appointment of Additional Director Mr.  William Varghese Chungath 

Cheru (DIN: 00074708) as Director of the Company 

Mr.  William Varghese Chungath Cheru (DIN: 00074708) on the recommendation of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee was appointed as Additional Director with effect 

from 23/06/2025 by the Board in accordance with the Article 67 of the Articles of 

Association and sec 161 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

As per Section 161 of the Act, Mr.  William Varghese Chungath Cheru (DIN: 00074708) holds 

office up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting on 30.09.2025  

Shri William Varghese Chungath Cheru possess the requisite knowledge, experience and skill 

for the position of Director. The Board on the recommendation of Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and subject to the approval of members in the ensuing AGM, has 

accorded its consent, to appoint Mr.  William Varghese Chungath Cheru (DIN: 00074708) as 

a Non-Executive Director liable to retire by rotation.  

The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 4 for approval of the shareholders. 

Except for Mr.  William Varghese Chungath Cheru and/or his relatives, none of the Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are deemed to be interested or 

concerned in the said resolution. 

 

Item No:5 

Regularization of Appointment of Additional Director Mr. Porathur Antony Devassy (DIN: 

00075226) as Director of the Company 

 

Mr. Porathur Antony Devassy (DIN: 00075226) on the recommendation of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee was appointed as Additional Director with effect from 

23.06.2025 by the Board in accordance with the Article 67 of the Articles of Association and 

sec 161 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

As per Section 161 of the Act, Mr.  Porathur Antony Devassy (DIN: 00075226) holds office up 

to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting on 30.09.2025  

Mr.  Porathur Antony Devassy possess the requisite knowledge, experience and skill for the 

position of Director. The Board on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and subject to the approval of members in the ensuing AGM, has accorded its 



 
 

consent, to appoint Mr. Porathur Antony Devassy (DIN: 00075226) as a Non-Executive 

Director liable to retire by rotation.  

The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 5 for approval of the shareholders. 

Except for Mr.  Porathur Antony Devassy and/or his relatives, none of the Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are deemed to be interested or 

concerned in the said resolution. 

 

6 To approve transactions under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 

The Members are informed that as per the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 

2013, no company shall, directly or indirectly, advance any loan including any loan 

represented by a book debt, to any of its Directors or to any other person in whom the 

Director is interested or give any guarantee or provide any security in connection with any 

loan taken by him or such other person. In terms of the amended Section 185 of the Act, a 

company may advance any loan, including any loan represented by a book debt, to any 

person in whom any of the Directors of the Company is interested or give any guarantee or 

provide any security in connection with any loan taken by any such person, subject to the 

condition that approval of the shareholders of the Company is obtained by way of passing a 

Special Resolution. 

  

The Members are further informed that the management is of the view that the Company 

may be required to invest surplus funds, if available for the business requirement in its 

associate/subsidiary Companies or to any other body corporate(s) from time to time. 

  

Hence, as an abundant caution, the Board decided to seek approval of the shareholders 

pursuant to the amended provisions of Section 185 of the Act to provide financial assistance 

by way of loan or give guarantee or provide security in respect of loans taken by such any 

person, for their principal business activities. 

 

The Members may note that Board of Directors would carefully evaluate proposals and 

provide such loan, guarantee or security through deployment of funds out of internal 

resources/accruals and/or any other appropriate sources, from time to time, only for 

principal business activities of such Entities. 

  

The Board of Directors recommends resolution as set out in item No.6 for approval of the 

members of the Company by way of passing a Special Resolution. 

  



 
 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives or any of 

other officials of the Company as contemplated in the provisions of Section 102 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 is, in any way, financially or otherwise, concerned or interested in the 

resolution. 

 

7. To borrow money in excess of the prescribed limit under section 180(1)(c) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 180 (1) (c) of Companies Act, 2013, the Board of the 

Directors of a Company cannot borrow moneys in excess of the amount paid- up capital of 

the company and its free reserves and securities premium without the approval of the 

shareholders in a General Meeting by way of Special Resolution.  

In order to further expand the business and to meet the increased financial needs the 

company would require to borrow in excess of the amount of paid up capital and free 

reserves of the Company. It is therefore proposed to increase the borrowing limits to an 

aggregate amount of Rs. 100 crores. 

Accordingly, the consent of the Members is being sought for the enhancement of the 

borrowing limits of the Company as set out in the Special resolution at item no: 7 of the 

Notice. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is in 

any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution except to the 

extent of their directorship and shareholding in the body corporate(s) in which investment 

may be made or loan/ guarantees may be given pursuant to this special resolution. 

 

8. Sell, lease or otherwise disposal of the whole, or substantially the whole, of the 

undertaking:  

The Company is presently engaged in the business of purchasing, selling and dealing of cars. 

The Board in its meeting held on 30.08.2025 had carried out a comprehensive review of the 

ongoing business operations of the Company and the challenges facing by the management 

in running the business and operations of the Company.  

The Board is of the opinion that the Company is in need of funds for enhancing its liquidity. 

Your Company is now seeking approval of shareholders of the Company by special 

resolution to sell, lease the assets of the Company including and not limited to fixed 

immovable Assets by any mode. The Business is operating under challenging environment 

due to various factors as high interest cost etc. This is the reason that had led the Company 

to take the decision to raise funds to restructure the finance of the Company.  



 
 

The Members are further informed that the Board of Directors, after evaluating the 

feasibility of various options, have decided to recommend for your approval to sale, lease of 

assets of the Company including and not limited to fixed immovable assets of the Company. 

Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) provides that the Board of Directors 

of a Company shall not except with the consent of the Members by way of a special 

resolution sell, lease, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of the whole, or substantially the 

whole, of the undertaking of the Company.  

The resolution in the accompanying notice is proposed to seek Members’ approval through 

special resolution. The Board is of the opinion that the aforesaid Resolution is in the best 

interest of the Company and hence recommends the Special Resolution for your approval.  

 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel /Managers of the Company / their 

relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution 

except to the extent of their shareholding / directorship, if any.  

 

9.  Remuneration to Managing Director in excess of 5% of the Net Profit of the company 

 

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board 

of Directors, Members approved Mr. Jijin Chanayil Surendran as Managing Director of the 

Company for a period of 5 years with effect from 26/03/2022. Further, the members had 

authorised the Board to alter and vary the terms and conditions including remuneration and 

incremental thereof, from time to time for Mr. Jijin Chanayil Surendran, but such 

remuneration payable shall be within the limits specified in the Section 197 and other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). 

 

As per Section 197 and other applicable provisions of the act, the remuneration payable to 

any one managing director or whole-time director or manager shall not exceed 5% of the 

net profits of the Company and if there is more than one such director remuneration shall 

not exceed 10% of the net profits to all such directors and manager taken together. 

 

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of 

members is being sought, by way of special resolution, for payment of remuneration to Mr. 

Jijin Chanayil Surendran, Managing Director, in excess of prescribed limit of 5% of net profit 

of the Company, in this AGM. 

 



 
 

Except Mr. Jijin Chanayil Surendran, no other director(s) and Key Managerial Personnel(s) or 

their relatives, is in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this 

resolution. 

 

The Board recommends the Special Resolutions set out in the Item Nos. 6 of the Notice for 

approval by the shareholders. 

 

10.Approval of Related Party transaction with M/s Rajputana Investment & Finance 

Limited 

The Company, in order to further its business activities, entered into park and sale 

commission agreement with M/s Rajputana Investment & Finance Limited from the financial 

year 2022-2023, a Related Party within the definition of Section 2(76) and section 188 of the 

Companies Act 2013. 

Usually, this park and sale commission agreement is entered for the period of 12 months 

and after completion of the agreement period, it will renew by the Board of Directors. By 

executing this agreement, the board of directors at its meeting held on 26.06.2025 agree to 

provide all sale related works and responsibilities to sell premium cars stock of M/s BRD Car 

World Limited to M/s Rajputana Investment & Finance Limited subject to a fixed 

commission of Rs.150000.00/- on monthly basis for maintenance and safe keeping of their 

vehicles and also a variable commission on the basis of sale performance. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are in any way 

concerned or interested in the said resolution.  

 

The Board recommends the Special Resolutions set out in the Item No. 10 of the Notice for 

approval by the shareholders. 

 

11. To give Loans, investments, provide guarantees or securities in excess of limits 

The Members are informed that as per Section 186 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013, no 

company shall, directly or indirectly: - 

(a) give any loan to any person or other body corporate; 

(b) give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body 

corporate or person; and 

(c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other 

body corporate, 

 



 
 

exceeding 60% of its paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account or 

100% of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more. 

Further, as per Section 186 (3) of the Act, where the giving of any loan or guarantee or 

providing any security or the acquisition under sub section (2) exceeds the limits specified in 

that sub section, prior approval by means of a special resolution passed at a general 

meeting shall be necessary. 

 

Accordingly, it is proposed to seek prior approval of Members vide an enabling resolution to 

provide loans, guarantees and make investments up to a sum of Rs.100 Crores (Rupees 

Hundred Crores) over and above the prescribed limits specified in the section 186(2) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 at any point of time. 

  

The Board of Directors recommends resolution as set out in item No.11 for approval of the 

members of the Company by way of passing a Special Resolution. 

  

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company (including relatives of 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel) is in any way, whether financially or otherwise, 

concerned or interested, in the said resolution 

 

By order of the board of directors 

M/s B R D Car World Limited 

 

Mr. Jijin Chanayil Surendran 

Managing Director (Din: 03305487) 

 

 

Place: Konikkara 

Date: 04.09.2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

The Board of Directors of M/s B R D Car World Limited has pleasure in presenting the 17th 

Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company and the accounts for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Particulars 
For the financial year ended 

31st March, 2025 (Rs.) 

For the financial year ended 31st 

March, 2024 (Rs.) 

Revenue from operations 3,33,92,31,627.12 3,27,71,39,194.05 

Other Income 52,99,06,382.49 42,67,21,947.44 

Total Revenue 3,86,91,38,009.61 3,70,39,61,141.49 

Expense 3,86,51,83,194.81 3,65,85,68,912.72 

Profit before exceptional 

item and tax 
39,54,814.80 5,12,92,228.78 

Exceptional Items - - 

Profit/(Loss) before 

taxation 
39,54,814.80 5,12,92,228.78 

Less: Tax 

Expense 

 

Current Tax   

Deferred Tax 8,57,378 65,59,355 

Profit/(Loss) after tax 30,97,436.80 4,47,32,873.78 

 

COMPANY OVERVIEW 

M/s B R D Car World Limited was established in the year 2008 to enable customers to 

experience the finest range of Maruti Suzuki Cars in an exclusive and inspiriting 

environment. B R D Car World show rooms are designed to give the customers an 

enchanting experience of a lifetime.  We are ever more enthusiastic in winning the hearts of 

our customers to bring them into the BRD Family. We also offer our best Sales, Service, 

Spares experience to a customer in line with the vision and mission of Maruti Suzuki India 

Limited. We are committed to achieve Customer Satisfaction by understanding Customer 

requirements, and continually improving our methods and processes to provide quality 

service in Sales, Servicing and Spare Parts. 

 

 



 
 

 

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK 

Company is engaged in the business of Dealers of Maruti Car. The regulatory environment 

has changed drastically over years. However, the company is managing to establish itself in 

the constantly changing environment and enhance its shareholder value to the maximum. 

 

The Company has reported total income of 3,86,91,38,009.61/- for the current year as 

compared to 3,70,39,61,141.49/- in the previous year. The Net Profit for the year under 

review amounted to Rs. 30,97,436.80/- in the current year as compared to the Net Profit of 

4,47,32,873.78/- in the previous year. 

 

Your directors are optimistic about company’s business and hopeful of better performance 

with increased revenue in next year. 

 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

No change in the business carried on by the company.  

 

DIVIDEND 

Your directors do not recommend any Dividend for the current financial year due to 

conservation profit. 

 

DEPOSIT 

During the financial year 2024-2025, your company has not accepted any deposits within 

the meaning of Section 73, 74 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the 

companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rule 2014. 

   

TRANSFER TO RESERVES IN TERMS OF SECTION 134 (3) (J) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

During the year, the Company not transferred any amount to General Reserve. The total 

reserve and surplus as on 31st March 2025 stand at 20,75,27,417.79/- 

 

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL 

As on 31st March, 2025, Authorized share capital of your company is Rs. 350000000.00/- 

(Thirty-Five Crore Only) and Paid-up share capital of the company is Rs. 193029000.00/- 

(Ninteen   Crore Three Lakh and TwentyNine Thousand only). During the year, the company 

has not allotted any equity shares. 

 



 
 

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/ JV/ ASSOCIATE COMPANY  

Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company. 

 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

The company has no balance as on 31.03.2025 in unpaid dividend account which is required 

to be transferred to investor education and protection fund during the year under report in 

compliance with section 125 of the Companies Act 2013. 

  

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 

occurred during the financial year 2024-25 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

The copy of Annual Return as required under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, in Form MGT-7 

is made available on the website of the Company at www.brdcarworld.com. 

 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

During the Financial Year 2024-25 the Company held Five (5) meetings of the Board of 

Directors as per Section 173 of Companies Act, 2013 which is summarized below.  

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the 

Company confirms that-  

SN Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

1 28/06/2024 7 7 

2 31/08/2024 7 6 

3 09/11/2024 7 6 

4 05/03/2025 7 6 

5 11/03/2025 7 6 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures if any; 

  

http://www.brdcarworld.com/


 
 

DETAILS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

M/s. Balan and Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000340S), Bank Road, 

Aluva, Ernakulam – 683101, were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at 

the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 10th December 2024 to fill the casual vacancy 

arising from the resignation of M/s. Ayyer & Cherian, Chartered Accountants. They hold 

office up to the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, proposes 

the re-appointment of M/s. Balan and Co, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors 

of the Company for a further term of five consecutive years, commencing from the 

conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and ending at the conclusion of the 

Annual General Meeting to be held in the financial year 2029-30, subject to the approval of 

the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

 

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

The company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of Companies Act 2013 in 

relation to Loans, Investments, Guarantees and security given by the company. 

 

b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of 

the company for that period; 

  

c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

  

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

  

e) The Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 

pertaining to laying down internal financial controls to be followed is not applicable to the 

Company; and 

 

 

f)     Proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were devised and 

such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 



 
 

 
COMPANY’S POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS: 

The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive, non-executive and 

independent directors to maintain the independence of the Board, and separate its 

functions of governance and management. As of March 31, 2025, the Board has Seven 

members, one of whom was executive, three were non- executive and three were 

independent directors. The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, 

Senior Management and their remuneration policy including the criteria for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters, as required 

under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
DETAILS OF EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, 

RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE STATUTORY 

AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT: 

The report of the Statutory Auditors for the year ended 31st March, 2025 does not contain 

any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks. 

 

DETAILS OF EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, 

RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE COMPANY 

SECRETARY IN PRACTICE IN HIS SECRETARIAL AUDITOR REPORT: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of 

Directors has appointed CS. M Vasudevan, Practicing Company Secretary, Thrissur to 

undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the FY 2024-2025. The Secretarial Audit 

Report of the Company for the FY 2024-2025 is enclosed as Annexure-I and forms part of 

Director’s Report. 

The Secretarial Audit Report contains certain, observations. The Board’s explanations 

thereon are provided below: 

1)Mismatch in dates of Board’s Report and Financial Statements: 

The Board acknowledges the mismatch in dates and clarifies that the same occurred due to 

oversight in finalisation and signing sequence of the financial statements and Board’s 

Report. The Company will ensure strict adherence to the proper approval process and 

chronology in future. 

2)Appointment of Secretarial Auditor and reference in Board’s Report: 

The Company acknowledges that the Secretarial Auditor for FY 2023-24 was appointed after 

the Annual General Meeting, due to which the Secretarial Audit Report was not annexed to 



 
 

the Annual Report of that year. Further, the incorrect mention of appointment of Mr. M. 

Vasudevan was inadvertent. The Company has taken corrective measures and ensured that 

proper appointment is made within statutory timelines for the current year. 

3)Compliance with Secretarial Standards (SS–1 and SS–2): 

The Company partially complied with Secretarial Standards due to administrative lapses in 

circulation of notices/agenda. The Company assures that systems have been strengthened 

to ensure full compliance going forward. 

4)Non-filing of certain statutory forms (PAS-6, DPT-3, MGT-14, ADT-1, MGT-7): 

The Board wishes to clarify that due to administrative reasons, the said records could not be 

produced during the course of the audit. The Company has initiated steps to regularise the 

pending filings and will ensure timely compliance and proper record maintenance going 

forward. 

5)Appointment of Statutory Auditors and filing with ROC: 

The Board notes that M/s. Ayyer & Cherian were appointed as Statutory Auditors at the 

16th AGM held on 30th September 2024. Upon their resignation, M/s. Balan & Co. were 

appointed in the EGM held on 10th December 2024 to fill the casual vacancy. The Company 

is in the process of filing the requisite e-forms (ADT-1) with the Registrar of Companies to 

give effect to these appointments. 

 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties pursuant to Section 

188 are furnished in Form No.AOC-2 as Annexure – II to this Report. 

Sl No Name of Related Party 
Nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 

transaction 
Amount 

1 Jijin Chanayil Surendran 
Managing 

Director 
Remuneration 30,58,036.00 

2. 
Ragesh Pananghat 

Menon 
CFO Remuneration 6,38,658.00 

3 Nandu Chandramohan 
Company 

Secretary 
Remuneration 4,83,836.00 

4 Jijin Chanayil Surendran 
Managing 

Director 
Bonus 10,000.00 

5 
Ragesh Pananghat 

Menon 
CFO Bonus 6,000.00 

6 Jijin Chanayil Surendran 
Managing 

Director 
Commission 2,50,000.00 



 
 

7 Ragesh Pananghat Menon CFO Commission 1,06,575.00 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

OUTGO: 

(A) Conservation of energy:  

The company is engaged in the dealership business of Maruti Suzuki Cars and therefore 

conservation of energy, technology absorption etc. have a limited application. However, the 

company follows a practice of purchase and use of energy efficient electrical and electronic 

equipment and gadgets in its operations.   

 

 (B) Technology absorption: 

Operations of the company do not involve any kind of special technology and there was no 

expenditure on research & development during this financial year. However, your company 

continues to upgrade its technology (Computer Technology and Telecom Infrastructure) in 

ensuring it is connected with its clients across the globe.  

 

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo 

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of risk 

threatening the Company’s existence are very minimal. 

 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of 

The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) 

Act, 2013.Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints 

received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, 

trainees) are covered under this policy.  

 

 

 

 

DIRECTORS AND KMP (Composition of Board) 



 
 

The Company has a well-structured Board consisting of 7 Directors and one CFO & CS, the 

Composition of the Board, position and other details are shown below; 

Sl 

No 
DIN/PAN Name Designation 

Date of 

appointment 

 

No of 

meeting 

attended 

1 00074163 
Mr. Chungath Cheru 

Simon 
Director 21/05/2008 5 

2 00297057 
Mr. Bahuleyan Raman 

Nalupurakkal 

Independent 

Director 
11/03/2019 1 

3 03305487 
Mr. Jijin Chanayil 

Surendran 

Managing 

Director 
25/01/2018 5 

4 00542339 Mr. Mathew Jose 
Independent 

Director 
25/01/2018 5 

5 08389552 Mr. Sunny Mathew 
Independent 

Director 
11/03/2019 5 

6 07538990 
Mr. Jojo Joseph 

Njezhuvinkel 

Director 
14.11.2022 5 

7 AMVPR4939E 
Mr. Ragesh Pananghat 

Menon 
CFO(KMP) 05/11/2021 5 

8 03296118 Ms. Susanna Isaac Director 30/09/2023 5 

9 CWPPM367GM 
Mr. Nandu Chandra 

Mohan 

Company 

Secretary 
27.06.2024 5 

 Mr. Nandu Chandra Mohan, Company Secretary appointed with effect form 

27.06.2024 and resigned with effect from 23.06.2025 

 Mr. Bahuleyan Raman Nalupurakkal, Independent Director of the company passed 

away with effect from 28.07.2025. 

 Mr. Viju Vincent (Membership No: A46588 Appointed as Company secretary with 

effect from 25/08/2025 

 Mr.  William Varghese Chungath Cheru (DIN: 00074708) & Mr.  Porathur Antony 

Devassy (DIN: 00075226) appointed as Additional Director with effect from 

23/06/2025 



 
 

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of 

independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 for fulfilment 

of their responsibilities in a professional and faithful manner and to promote confidence of 

the investment community, particularly Minority Shareholders and regulators of the 

Company. 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Independent Directors play an important role in their governance process of the Board. 

They bring to bear their expertise and experience on the deliberations of the Board. This 

enriches the decision-making process at the Board with different point of view and 

experiences and prevents conflict of interest in the decision-making process. The 

appointment of Independent Director is carried out in a structured manner. The Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee identifies potential candidates based on certain laid down 

criteria and takes in to consideration the diversity of the Board. The Independent Directors 

have been appointed for a fixed tenure of five years from their respective dates of 

appointment. During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 5th March, 

2025 inter alia, to discuss: 

a) Evaluation of the Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors 

as a whole; 

b) Evaluation of the Performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the 

views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors. 

c) Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the 

Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 

perform its duties. All the Independent Directors were present throughout the Meeting. 

They expressed views on the business transacted at the Meetings and the openness with 

which the Management discussed various subject matters on the agenda of the meetings. 

Their suggestions were discussed at the Board Meeting and are being implemented to 

ensure a more robust interaction at the Board level. 

  

COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD 

As on date, the Board of Directors has the following Committees under provisions of the 

Companies Act 2013: 

 

1. Audit Committee 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 



 
 

 

The details of the Committees along with their composition, number of meetings held and 

attendance at meetings are detailed below. 

1. Audit Committee 

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (“the Audit Committee”) is entrusted 

primarily with the responsibility to supervise the Company’s internal controls and 

financial reporting process. The members of the Audit Committee are financially 

literate and bring in expertise in the fields of Finance, Taxation and Auditing. The 

composition, quorum, powers, role and scope of the Committee shall be in 

accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act and rules framed there under. 

The committee comprises the following Members as on 31st March 2025  

• NR Bahuleyan 

• Mathew Jose 

• Sunny Mathew 

• Jijin Surendran 

 

 During the Financial Year 2024-25, 2 meeting of the Audit Committee was held. 

  

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The committee mainly deals with matters relating to the size and composition of 

the Board, succession plans, evaluation of performance, Board diversity and 

remuneration framework and policies thereon. The committee is in the process 

of improving detailed criteria relating to the determination of qualifications, 

positive attributes and independence of directors and recommendation of 

candidates to the Board as well as a policy relating to remuneration of directors, 

key managerial personnel and other employees. The committee comprises the 

following Members as on 31st March 2025 

• Mathew Jose 

• Jijin Surendran 

• Sunny Mathew 

       • NR Bahuleyan 

SN Date of Meeting Committee Strength No. of Directors Present 

1 31/08/2024 4 3 

2 09/11/2024 4 3 

SN Date of Meeting committee Strength No. of Directors Present 



 
 

During the Financial Year 2024-2025, 2 meeting of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee were held on 27.06.2024 and 07.11.2024 

 

STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION HAS 

BEEN MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS DIRECTORS, AND THAT OF 

ITS COMMITTEES: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under the 

provisions relating to the formal annual evaluation are not applicable to the company. 

 

DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF A VIGIL MECHANISM: 

The company is not required to constitute a vigil mechanism pursuant to the provision of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. 

 

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS. 

During the period under review, there are no significant or material orders passed by the 

Regulators, Courts, and Tribunals which affects the Company’s going concern status or 

operations. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 
The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 

ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s 

policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. The Statutory Auditors have 

evaluated the system of internal controls of the Company and also reviewed their 

effectiveness and have reported the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and that such internal financial 

controls were operating effectively as at the end of the financial year. The provisions 

relating to appointment of internal auditor was applicable to the Company during the year 

under review and Mr. Sreenivasan CA (022315) was appointed as internal auditor of the 

Company. 

COST AUDITORS: 

1 27.06.2024 4 3 

2 07/11/2024 4 3 



 
 

The Company is not required to appoint a Cost Auditor pursuant to the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

DISCLOSURE AS TO MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS SPECIFIED BY THE CENTRAL 

GOVERNMENT U/S 148 (2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013. 

Section 148 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company and hence the 

disclosure as to maintenance of accounts and cost records does not arise. 

 

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013. 

There are no instances of fraud reported by Auditors u/s 143(12) of the Companies Act, 

2013 during the year under review.  

 

DEMATERIALISATION OF SECURITIES 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has made it mandatory for unlisted public 

Companies to allot its securities and to provide facility for transfer of securities in demat 

mode w.e.f 02nd October 2018. Allotment and transfer of securities in physical mode is not 

allowed w.e.f 02nd October 2018. In order to comply with the MCA direction, the Company 

has taken measures to dematerialize the shares and Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) 

with National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services Limited. 

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in this Boards report describing the Company’s objectives, projections, 

estimates and expectations may be forward looking, within the meaning of the applicable 

laws, and regulations. Although the expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, 

actual results might differ. 

 

GENERAL 

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following 

items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 

 Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the company under 

any scheme. 

 The company has no subsidiary and neither the managing director nor the whole-

time directors of the company receive any remuneration or commission from any of 

its subsidiaries. 



 
 

 The provision regarding corporate social responsibility as prescribed under section 

135 of companies act 2013, are not applicable to the company for the year under 

report. 

 

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND 

BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016: 

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceeding pending in 

the name of the company under the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and accordingly, 

reporting under Rule 8 (5) (xi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is not applicable. 

 

DETAILS OF DEFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND 

VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS: 

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of loans taken from 

banks and financial institutions and accordingly, reporting under Rule 8 (5) (xii) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is not applicable. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES/STAFF: 

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the dedicated efforts of 

the employees at all levels during the year under review. 

There are no employees in the Company drawing a remuneration of Rs.8,50,000/- (Rupees 

Eight Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) and above per month or Rs,1,02,00,000/- (Rupees One 

Crore and Two Lakhs only) and above per annum and accordingly, reporting of information 

as required under Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014 read with the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016, issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs vide Notification dated 30th June, 2016, is not applicable to the Company 

for the year under review. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors place on record their deep gratitude to the shareholders of the company for 

continuing to support our venture by way of financial support in subscription of shares and 

hope that they will continue to support the company by their cooperation and active 

involvement in the activities of the company. Your directors are also thankful to the valued 

customers and well-wishers of the company for their goodwill, patronage and whole-

hearted support. 

 



 
 

Your directors thank the Bankers, the various Government agencies, suppliers, Investors and 

all others for their wholehearted support during the year and look forward to their 

continued support in the years ahead. 

 

Your directors place on record the deep appreciation of the valuable contributions of the 

staff members at all levels for the all-round progress of the company during the year and 

look forward to the continued cooperation for the realization of its corporate goals in the 

days ahead. 

 

For M/s B R D Car World Limited 

                                                       

 

  Sd/-        Sd/- 

Jijin Chanayil Surendran                 Chungath Cheru Simon 

Managing Director                   Director 

DIN: 03305487               DIN: 00074163 

 

Place: Konikkara 

Date: 30.08.2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE-I 

          MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

B R D Car World Limited 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by B R D Car World Limited 

(hereinafter called the“company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 

provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 

and expressing my opinion thereon. Based on my verification of the company’s books, 

papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company 

and also the information provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, 

the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 

2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the company has 

proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 

and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to 

the provisions of: 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

ii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

iii. The other laws applicable specifically to the company are as follows: 

a) The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provident Act, 1952; 

b) The Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948; 

c) The Factories Act, 1948; 

d) The Kerala Factories Rules, 1957; 

e) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936; 

f) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 ; 



 
 

g) The Kerala Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1975; 

h) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974; 

i) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981; 

j) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by The Institute of company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except as mentioned 

herein below: 

1. We report that the Audit Report and Financial Statements of the Company are dated 

30.08.2024, whereas the Board’s Report is dated 27.06.2024, which indicates a mismatch in 

the dates of approval. 

2. We further report that the Secretarial Auditor for the financial year 2023-24 was 

appointed only after the Annual General Meeting and secretarial audit report was not 

forming part of the annual report of the company and the Board’s Report for the said 

financial year did not contain any reference to or comments on the Secretarial Audit Report. 

We also report that the Board’s Report has incorrectly mentioned the appointment of Mr. 

M. Vasudevan, Practicing Company Secretary, as the Secretarial Auditor, whereas no such 

appointment had been made as on the date of the Board’s Report. 

3. We further report that the Company has not fully complied with the provisions of 

Secretarial Standard–1 (Meetings of the Board of Directors) and Secretarial Standard–2 

(General Meetings) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

4. We further report that the Company has not produced documents regarding filing of 

statutory forms with the Registrar of Companies during the period under review such as 

PAS-6 (2), DPT-3, MGT-14 (3), ADT-1 (2), and MGT-7. 

 

I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 

composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 

carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except in respect of 

certain meetings and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 



 
 

the meeting. Majority decision is carried through and the views expressed by the Board 

members were also captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

I further report that during the audit period the company has made the following specific 

events/ actions having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the rules, 

regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above: 

1. The Company appointed M/s. Ayyer & Cherian as its Statutory Auditors for a term of five 

years at the 16th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2024. However, 

following their resignation, the Company convened an Extraordinary General Meeting on 

10th December,2024 and appointed M/s. Balan & Co. as Statutory Auditors to fill the casual 

vacancy caused by the said resignation. The Company has not produced the requisite forms 

filed with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) in respect of both appointments for our 

inspection. 

 

Place: Thrissur  

Date: 30.08.2025 

 

Signature: Sd/- 

Name of Company Secretary in practice: M Vasudevan 

(FCS No.: 4177 C P No.: 2437) 

Peer Review Number : 2935/2023 

UDIN: F004177G001122074 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE-II 

                                       FORM AOC-2 

Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company 

with related parties referred to in sub Section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 

1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NIL 

2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL 

3 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL 

4 
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 
NIL 

5 
Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions’ 
NIL 

6 Date of approval by the Board NIL 

7 Amount paid as advances if any NIL 

8 
Date on which the special resolution was passed in General 

meeting as required under first proviso to Section 188 
NIL 

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 

M/s Rajputana Investment & 

Finance Limted 



 
 

2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Park & sale commission agreement 

3 Duration of the   

contracts/arrangements/transaction 

12 Month (April to March of every 

year) 

4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 

or transaction including the value, if any 

Fixed commission of 

Rs.150000.00/- on monthly basis 

and also variable commission based 

on the sale performance. 

5 Date of approval by the Board/General Meeting Approved by the board on 

30.08.2025 subject to approval of 

members at ensuing AGM (With 

Retrospective effect from 01-04- 

2025) 

6 Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 

 

 

For M/s B R D Car World Limited 

                                                       

 

  Sd/-        Sd/- 

Jijin Chanayil Surendran                   Chungath Cheru Simon 

Managing Director                         Director 

DIN: 03305487                    DIN: 00074163 

 

Place: Konikkara 

Date: 30.08.2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

To the Members of BRD Car World Limited, Thrissur. 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Opinion  

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s BRD Car World Limited, 

Thrissur (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary 

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 

2013(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 

the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 

as at March 31, 2025, and its Profit and its Cash Flow for the year ended on that date.  

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 

Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does 

not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 



 
 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the reports containing the 

other information, if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 

Statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and 

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 

Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial 

reporting process. 



 
 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 

and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 

company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 

the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 



 
 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 

3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the 

matter stated in paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

 



 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 

March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters 

connected therewith are as stated in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under 

section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 

11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 

our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

 

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014(as 

amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 

financial position. Refer Note No. 3.30 

 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 

for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 



 
 

iv. (a)  The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 

share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or 

in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with 

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 

the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b)  The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 

have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including 

foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded 

in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or 

indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

 

(c)  Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 

caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 

Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 

misstatement. 

 

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in 

contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining 

books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording 

audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 

2023, and based on our examination which included test checks, the Company 

have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the 

Financial Year ended 31 March 2025, which have a feature of recording audit 

trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all 



 
 

relevant transactions recorded in the respective software. Further, for the 

periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout 

the year for the respective accounting software, we did not come across any 

instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has 

been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record 

retention. 

 

              For Balan & Co., 

                Chartered Accountants 

                                                             ICAI Firm registration number: 000340S 

 

Sd/- 

P. Mohandas FCA  

                 Partner (M.No.021262) 

                   UDIN: 25021262BMHZQO2215 

Place: Aluva 

Date: 30.08.2025 

 

 

 



 
 

“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report  

 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory 

Requirement’ section of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company 

for the year ended March 31, 2025.  

 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment. 

 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 

Intangible assets. 

 

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular 

programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by 

which all Property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a 

period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, 

plant and equipment were verified during the year. According to the 

information and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were 

noticed on such verification. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds, of all the 

immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the Company 

is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lesee) 

disclosed in the financial statements included in Property, Plant and Equipment 

are held in the name of the Company. * 

  

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued 

its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible 

assets or both during the year. 

 

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated 

or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the 



 
 

Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made 

thereunder. 

 

 * Documents related to the additions in immovable property and infrastructure 

facilities in the books of accounts consequent to the search and Honorable 

settlement commission order is not available for verification. Since the matter 

was concluded by the commission, we accept the management representation 

related to the additions.  

 

* In connection with a complaint filed under ECIR No. ECIR/KCZO/04/2019 

dated August 14, 2019, the Directorate of Enforcement, Cochin Zonal Office, 

has provisionally attached an extent of 69.98 acres of land located in Thrikkur 

Village, Thrissur District. 

 

(ii) (a) The inventories, except goods-in-transit have been physically verified by the 

management during the year. In our opinion and based on information and 

explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by 

the management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and 

the nature of its operations. No discrepancies were noticed on verification 

between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in 

the aggregate of each class of inventory. 

 

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been 

sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, 

from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In 

our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with 

such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account 

of the Company. 

 

(iii) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made 

any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in 

the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability 

partnerships or any other parties during the year. 

 



 
 

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion, as the 

Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or 

granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 

companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the 

year. Accordingly, the reporting under sub-clauses (b) under clause (iii) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted 

any loans or advances in nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, the 

reporting under Clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted 

any loans or advances in nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, the 

reporting under Clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted 

any loans or advances in nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, the 

reporting under Clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted 

any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or 

without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any 

guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and therefor the reporting under Clause 3(iv) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

 



 
 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 

of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable. 

 

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government 

has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(vii) (a)      According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been 

generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident 

fund, employees state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and 

service tax, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the 

appropriate authorities. 

 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 

statutory dues relating to Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Goods and 

Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, or Cess 

or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any 

dispute except as given below: 

 

Name of 

Statute 

Nature of 

Dues 

Forum 

where 

dispute is 

pending 

Period to 

which 

amount 

relates 

Amount 

Involved [₹ 

in lakhs] 

Amount 

Unpaid 

[₹ in lakhs] 

Income 

Tax 

IT matters 

under 

dispute 

CIT(A) A.Y. 2020-

21 

98.42 78.74 

Kerala 

Value 

Added 

Tax, 2003 

Sales tax 

and 

interest 

Appellate 

Tribunal, 

Ernakulam 

A.Y. 2016-

17 

14.01 - 

 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or 



 
 

disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, 

in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 

defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest 

thereon to any lender. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been 

declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government 

or government authority. 

 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations and 

representation given to us by the management, the Company has not taken 

any term loan during the year and there are no unutilized term loans at the 

beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, 

funds raised by the Company on short term basis have not been utilized for 

long-term purposes. 

 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not 

taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 

obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, clause 

3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedure 

performed by us, the Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or 

associate company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order are 

not applicable to the Company. 

 



 
 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting 

under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, 

partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, 

reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xi) (a) In our opinion and based on examination of the books and records of the 

Company and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we 

report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or 

reported during the course of the audit. 

 

 (b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 

filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

 

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the 

representation made to us by the management of the Company, there are no 

whistleblower complaints received by the Company during the year. 

 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 

Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit 

procedures performed by us, in our opinion, the Company is in compliance with 

Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where applicable, for all transactions 

with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been 

disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting 

standards. 

 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, 

in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the 

size and nature of its business. 



 
 

 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for 

the period under audit. 

 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 

persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act 

are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash any cash losses in the financial year or in the 

immediately preceding financial year. 

 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and 

accordingly the reporting under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 

statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management 

and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing 

has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty 

exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its 

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not 

an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 

reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 

any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when 

they fall due. 

 

(xx) According to the information and explanations given by the Management and audit 

procedures performed by us, the CSR requirement norms as mentioned in section 



 
 

135(1) of the Companies Act 2013 does not apply to the company during the year. 

Hence the requirement to report under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company and therefore not commented upon. 

 

(xxi) The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone 

financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in 

respect of said clause under this report. 

              For Balan & Co., 

                Chartered Accountants 

                                                             ICAI Firm registration number: 000340S 

 

Sd/- 

P. Mohandas FCA  

                 Partner (M.No.021262) 

                   UDIN: 25021262BMHZQO2215 

Place: Aluva 

Date: 30.08.2025 

 

 



 
 

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial 

Statements of BRD CAR WORLD LIMITED 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BRD Car World 

Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 

Companies Act, 2013.  

 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 

audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 

and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 

the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 

over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects.  

 



 
 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting.   

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate.  



 
 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control 

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

                                                                                              

For Balan & Co., 

                Chartered Accountants 

                                                             ICAI Firm registration number: 000340S 

 

Sd/- 

P. Mohandas FCA  

                 Partner (M.No.021262) 

                   UDIN: 25021262BMHZQO2215 

Place: Aluva 

Date: 30.08.2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
 
1) Company Overview 

BRD Car World Ltd (‘the company’) is a Platinum Dealer of Maruti Suzuki India Limited, has its 

dealership in Thrissur District and is the market leader of Passenger Car market in this district. 

 

BRD Car World Limited was established in the year 2009 to experience the finest range of Maruti 

Suzuki Cars in an exclusive and inspiriting environment and is engaged in the business of sale and 

service of automobiles, sale of spare parts and accessories.  

 

2) Significant accounting policies  

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises 

mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(‘the Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), the 

provisions of the Act (to the extent notified). Accounting policies have been consistently applied 

except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing 

accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.  

 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s 

normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Based on the nature of services and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company 

has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current 

classification of assets and liabilities. 

 

2.2 Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management 

to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and 

disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and 

reported amounts of income and expenses during the period.  

 

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those 

estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of 

changes in the circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in 

the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects 

are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.  

 

2.3 Cost recognition 



 
 

Costs and expenses are recognized when incurred and are classified according to their nature. 

Expenditure are capitalized where appropriate, in accordance with the policy undertaken by the 

Company. 

 

2.4 Revenue recognition 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of 

ownership to the buyer. The Company generates revenue from sale of vehicles, services, spare 

parts and accessories and other operating avenues. 

Income from services is recognized on completion of rendering of services. 

 

Interest income is recognized on the time proportion basis determined by the amount 

outstanding and the rate applicable and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or 

collectability exists. 

 

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the right to receive the payment is 

established and when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists. 

 

2.5 Property, Plant & Equipments 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 

comprises the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing 

the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and 

removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then 

they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in 

statement of profit and loss. 

 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits 

associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

 

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of tangible assets 

which are carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

 

2.6 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 

recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 

estimated useful economic life. 



 
 

 

2.7 Depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Written 

Down Value (WDV) Method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as 

prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of additions or extensions 

forming an integral part of existing assets, depreciation is provided as aforesaid over the residual 

life of the respective assets. 

 

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from (up to) the date on 

which asset is ready for use (disposed of). 

 

Intangible Assets are amortized on a Straight-Line basis over the estimated useful economic life 

Computer Software which is not an integral part of the related hardware is classified as an 

intangible asset, and amortized over a period of five years, being its estimated useful life. 

 

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are 

complete and the asset is ready for its intended use. 

 

 

2.8 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is computed on a first – 

in – first out basis. The net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Finished goods and work-in-progress include all costs of purchases, conversion costs and other 

costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 

 

2.9 Impairment 

The management periodically assesses, using external and internal sources, whether there is an 

indication that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the 

carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of 

the asset’s net selling price and value in use, which means the present value of future cash flows 

expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventful disposal. An impairment 

loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can bed related objectively to an event 

occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an asset is increased 

to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying 

amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or 

depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 

 

2.10 Employee benefits 



 
 

Short Term Employee Benefits: All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of 

rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits and they are recognized in 

the period in which the employee renders the related service. The Company recognizes the 

undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for 

services rendered as a liability (accrued expense). 

Other long term employee benefits: Entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognized 

when they accrue to employees. Sick leave can only be availed while annual leave can either be 

availed or encashed subject to a restriction on the maximum number of accumulation of leave 

 

Post-employment benefits:  

1. Defined contribution plans: The employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits 

under the Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance scheme, defined contribution plans 

in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The 

Company has no liability for future benefits other than its annual contribution and 

recognizes such contributions as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the 

financial year to which they relate. 

 

2. Defined benefit plans: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (“the 

Gratuity Plan”) covering the eligible employees of the Company. The Gratuity Plan provides 

a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or 

termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and 

the tenure of the employment with the Company. 

 

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an 

independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The 

defined benefit plan is administered by a trust formed for this purpose through the Company 

gratuity scheme. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan as a liability in 

its balance sheet. Gains or losses through re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability are 

recognized in to profit and loss in the subsequent periods. 

 

2.11 Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 

arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings 

to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.  

 

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an 

asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 

are capitalized. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. 

 

2.12 Trade receivables and Loans and advances  



 
 

Trade receivables and Loans and advances are stated after making adequate provisions for 

doubtful balances.  

 

2.13 Income taxes 

Tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e., amount of tax for the period determined in 

accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax 

effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period). 

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation 

authorities using the applicable tax rates and tax laws. 

 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising 

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 

statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the 

extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and laws that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to 

taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered 

or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is 

recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or substantive 

enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent it is probable that 

future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary timing 

differences and tax losses can be utilized. The Company offsets income-tax assets and liabilities, 

where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends 

either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

  

2.14 Earnings per share 

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with AS 20, Earnings 

per Share, as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. Basic earnings per share is 

computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding for the year.  

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other 

contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings 

per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive 

potential equity shares outstanding at the year end. 

 

2.15 Investments 

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than twelve months 

from the date on which such investments are made are classified as current investments. All 

other investments are classified as long-term investments. 



 
 

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price 

and directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. Current 

investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on 

an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision 

for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the 

investments. On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net 

disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss. 

 

2.16 Cash & equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The 

Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of 

purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to 

be cash equivalents. 

 

2.17 Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary 

items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or 

accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing 

and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information. Cash 

comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term 

balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly 

liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are 

subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

2.18 Exceptional Item 

When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities 

are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance 

of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such material items are disclosed 

separately as exceptional items. 

 

2.19 Provisions and Contingent liabilities   

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is 

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are 

measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at 

the Balance Sheet date and are not discounted to its present value. These are reviewed at each 

year end date and adjusted to reflect the best current estimate.  

 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, 

the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 



 
 

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present 

obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be 

made.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

(All amounts in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 
 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 

Particulars Notes 
As at 

31 March 2025 
As at 

31 March 2024 

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1 Shareholders’ funds 
 (a) Share capital 3.01 193,029,000.00 193,029,000.00 
 (b) Reserves and surplus 3.02 207,527,417.79 204,429,980.99 

2 Share application money pending allotment  - - 

3 Non-current liabilities 
 (a) Long-term borrowings 3.03 68,592,000.00 85,728,000.00 
 (b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)  - - 
 (c) Other Long term liabilities  - - 
 (d) Long-term provisions  - - 

4 Current liabilities 
 (a) Short-term borrowings 3.04 440,453,058.75 386,474,954.20 
 (b) Trade payables 3.05 320,350,331.88 130,990,704.24 
 (c) Other current liabilities 3.06 246,508,785.96 262,907,396.08 
 (d) Short-term provisions 3.07 7,562,857.83 6,984,555.00 

 Total  1,484,023,452.20 1,270,544,590.51 
 

II ASSETS    

1 Non Current Assets    
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 

 (i) Property, Plant and Equipment 3.08 449,974,366.22 361,008,448.13 
 (ii) Intangible assets 3.08 - - 
 (iii) Capital work-in-progress 3.08 12,057,556.00 18,159,927.00 
 (b) Non-current investments  - - 
 (c) Deferred tax assets (net) 3.09 51,130,418.00 51,987,796.00 
 (d) Long-term loans and advances 3.10 26,831,394.00 26,831,394.00 
 (e) Other non-current assets 3.11 27,269,420.00 26,648,499.00 

2 Current assets    
 (a) Current investments  - - 
 (b) Inventories 3.12 656,094,809.04 528,210,001.58 
 (c) Trade receivables 3.13 32,967,206.00 24,658,548.17 
 (d) Cash and cash equivalents 3.14 23,691,288.95 23,589,113.72 
 (e) Short-term loans and advances 3.15 141,852,269.91 176,505,160.69 
 (f) Other current assets 3.16 62,154,724.08 32,945,702.22 

 Total  1,484,023,452.20 1,270,544,590.51 
     

Summary of significant accounting policies 2 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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(All amounts in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 
 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 
Year ended Year ended 

Particulars Notes 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

 
3.17 3,339,231,627.12 3,277,139,194.05 
3.18 529,906,382.49 426,721,947.44 

3,869,138,009.61 3,703,861,141.49 

 

 
3.19 

3.20 

3.21 

3.22 

3.23 

3.24 
 

 
3,954,814.80 51,292,228.78 

- - 
3,954,814.80 51,292,228.78 

- - 
3,954,814.80 51,292,228.78 

3.25 
- - 

857,378.00 6,559,355.00 
 

857,378.00 6,559,355.00 
 

 

 

Profit/ (Loss) (XI + XIV) 3,097,436.80 44,732,873.78 

 
 

 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2  
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I Revenue from operations 

II Other income 

III Total Income(I + II) 
 

IV Expenses 
 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 
 Changes in inventories of finished goods ,WIP and Stock-in-Trade 
 Employee benefits expense 
 Finance Cost 
 Depreciation and amortization expense 
 Other expenses 
 Total expenses 

 

3,267,906,892.62 3,293,684,058.58 

(127,884,807.46) (257,173,753.19) 

289,394,801.60 262,207,684.25 

55,181,252.38 48,112,999.76 

32,133,073.51 28,252,622.38 

348,451,982.16 277,485,300.94 

3,865,183,194.81 3,652,568,912.72 

 
V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III-IV) 
VI Exceptional items 
VII Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI) 
VIII Extraordinary Items 
IX Profit before tax (VII- VIII) 
X Tax expense: 

 - Current tax 
 - Deferred tax 
 Income tax expense 

 

Earnings Per Equity Share ( Basic and Diluted ) 

[Nominal value of shares ₹ 10 each] 3.26 0.16 2.32 

 

XI Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (IX-X) 

XII Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations 

XIII Tax expense of discontinuing operations 
XIV Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) (XII-XIII) 

 

3,097,436.80 44,732,873.78 

- - 
- - 

- - 

 

Place : Aluva 
Date : 30.08.2025 

 

Place : Thrissur 
Date : 30.08.2025 

 



 
 

 
(All amounts in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Indirect method Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Particulars Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 
 

Cash Flow From Operating Activities :  

(Loss)/ Profit before tax 3,954,814.80 51,292,228.77 
Adjustments to reconcile (loss)/profit before tax to net cash flows:   

Depreciation and amortisation expense 32,133,073.51 28,252,622.38 
Finance Costs 55,181,252.38 48,112,999.76 
(Profit)/Loss on sale/write off of property, plant and equipment (net) (9,952,601.48) (1,669,649.47) 
Interest Income (1,454,243.74) (1,509,244.44) 
Bad Debts w/off 3,218,892.28 3,078,065.45 
Sundry Credits W/Back (7,289,752.77) (7,941,957.78) 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 75,791,434.98 119,615,064.66 

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:   

Trade Receivables (11,527,550.11) (7,291,932.15) 
Loans and Advances - (4,768,454.00) 
Other Current and Non-Current Assets (29,829,942.86) (2,066,565.95) 
Inventories and Right of return assets (127,884,807.46) (257,173,753.19) 
Short Term Loans and Advances 43,760,910.68 (41,882,016.19) 

Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: 
Short term borrowings 53,978,104.55 163,124,556.85 
Trade Payables 196,649,380.41 92,463,811.09 
Other current, non-current and refund liabilities (15,820,307.29) 56,728,670.53 

Changes in Working Capital 109,325,787.92 (865,683.01) 

Cash Generated from Operations 185,117,222.90 118,749,381.65 
Income Tax Paid (9,108,019.90) (9,698,603.82) 
Net Cash From Operating Activities 176,009,203.00 109,050,777.83 

Cash Flow From Investing activities :   

Purchase of PPE including intangible, Capital WIP and Capital advances (121,631,011.43) (45,580,263.91) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 16,586,991.25 7,806,547.00 
Interest Received 1,454,243.74 1,509,244.44 
Net Cash From Investing Activities (103,589,776.44) (36,264,472.47) 

Cash Flow From Financing Activities:   

Proceeds/(repayments) from long-term borrowings (net) (17,136,000.00) (35,291,654.00) 
Interest Paid (55,181,252.38) (48,112,999.76) 
Net cash flows used in financing activities (72,317,252.38) (83,404,653.76) 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 102,175.19 (10,618,348.40) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 23,589,113.76 34,207,462.16 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 23,691,288.95 23,589,113.76 

   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.   
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3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

 
3.01 Share capital 

3.1.1 Ordinary shares 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity share capital. 

 
3.1.2 Break up of Share Capital 

Particulars 
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

No. Value No. Value 

 
 Authorised 

Equity shares of ₹ 10 each 35,000,000 350,000,000.00 35,000,000 350,000,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up 

Equity shares of ₹ 10 each 
 

19,302,900 
 

193,029,000.00 
 

19,302,900 
 

193,029,000.00 

Total 19,302,900 193,029,000.00 19,302,900 193,029,000.00 

 
3.1.3 Terms / rights attached to equity shares 

    

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The 

Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in 

the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 

preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

3.1.4 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.1.5 

 
 

 
Equity shares of ₹ 10 each, fully paid  

C. C. William Varghese 12,211,700 63.26% 12,211,700 63.26% 

BRD Motors Limited 7,045,000 36.50% 7,045,000 36.50% 

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial 

interest, the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares. 

3.1.6 Disclosure of shareholding of promoters and percentage of change during the year. 

 
Name of shareholder 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

No. of shares 

held 
% of shareholding 

% Change in Holding No. of shares 

held 

% of 

shareholding 

% Change in Holding 

Equity shares of ₹ 10 each, fully paid 

C. C. William Varghese 12,211,700 63.26% - 12,211,700 63.26% - 
 

Equity Shares As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

No. Value No. Value 

No: of equity shares at the beginning of the year 19,302,900 193,029,000.00 19,302,900 193,029,000.00 

Add: Fresh issue - - - - 

Less: shares bought back - - - - 

Outstanding at the end of the year 19,302,900 193,029,000.00 19,302,900 193,029,000.00 

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares 
  

 
Name of shareholder 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

No. of shares held 
% of 

shareholding 
No. of shares held 

% of 

shareholding 

 



(All amounts in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 
 

 
 

 
3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

 
3.02 Reserves and surplus 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 
 

 Surplus/(Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening Balance 204,429,980.99 159,697,107.21 
Net Profit/(Loss) after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 3,097,436.80 44,732,873.78 

Closing Balance 207,527,417.79 204,429,980.99 
   

Total 207,527,417.79 204,429,980.99 

Retained earnings or Surplus 
This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company. 

  

 
3.03 

 
Long-term borrowings 

  

 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

Non-current Borrowings 

(a) Term Loans 

Secured 

- From Banks 68,592,000.00 85,728,000.00 

(b) Loans and advances from Related Parties 

Unsecured  

- ICD's - - 

Total 68,592,000.00 85,728,000.00 

Current maturities of long-term Borrowings 17,136,000.00 17,136,000.00 

Total 85,728,000.00 102,864,000.00 

Nature of security 

(a) Term Loans from Banks 

As a collateral to the Axis Bank term loan - Commercial Property with 175 cent land situated in Sy. No.577, Sy. No.576 and in Sy. No.573 near Jerusalem Retreat 

Centre ,Thrissur District in the name of M/s BRD Motor Ltd valuing ₹ 15.73 Crores. 

Further, the loan has been guaranteed by the personal guarantee of Promoter Mr. C. C. William Varghese and Director Mr. C. C. Simon. 

The company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

There is no continuing default as on the date of balance sheet in repayment of loans and interest. 

3.04 Short-term borrowings 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

(a) Loans repayable on demand 

Secured  

- From banks 423,317,058.75 369,338,954.20 

(b) Current maturities of long-term borrowings 17,136,000.00 17,136,000.00 

Total 440,453,058.75 386,474,954.20 



B R D CAR WORLD LIMITED 
(All amounts in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

 

 
 

 
Nature of Security 

(a) Loans repayable on demand from Banks 
State Bank of India - EDFS limit of ₹ 3500 Lakhs (PY 3000 Lakhs) is secured by way of hypothecation of inventories, receivables including the advance remittances made to the 

Company and Equitable Mortgage on over 59.73 ares of land (16.20 ares in Sy. No. 370/10, 1.31 ares in Sy. No. 366/5, 3.34 ares in Sy. No. 366/4 as per sale deed no. 2240/2010; 22.68 

ares in Sy. No. 366/4 as per sale deed no. 2239/2010; 16.20 ares in Sy. No. 366/4 as per sale deed no. 2238/2010) in Thekkumkara village, Mukundapuram Taluk, Vadakkumkara SRO, 

Thrissur in the name of the Company 'BRD Car World Limited' and Equitable Mortgage on over 123.74 ares of land and buildings (48.25 ares in Sy. No. 576/1, 62.54 ares in Sy. No. 

576/2 as per sale deed no. 2759/03; 12.95 ares in Sy. No. 576/2 as per sale deed no. 2761/03) in Nenmanikkara Village, Mukundapuram Taluk, Nellayi SRO , Thrissur in the name of 

the Company 'BRD Motors Ltd.'. 

Further, the loan has been guaranteed by the personal guarantee of Promoter Mr. C. C. William Varghese, Managing Director Mr. Jijin Chanayil Surendran, and other directors Mr. 

 
Simon Cheru Chungath, Mr. Jojo Njezhuvinkel Joseph, Mrs. Sussanna Issac and by Corporate Guarantee of M/s BRD Motors Limited. 

Axis Bank - Cash Credit Limit ₹ 800 Lakhs is secured by way of Hypothecation of entire current assets of the Company (Excluding vehicles funded under inventory funding) and 

Mortgage on 40.47 ares of land along with 32076 Sq. ft. building located at service centre area situated at Mullurkkara Panchayath, Chelakkara Village in Sy. no. 385/4-1, Thrissur in 

the name of the Company. The CC is further secured by way of EM on 33.489 ares of land and 16,794 sq. ft. commercial building located at Sy. No. 329/1G-1T, 329/2E-3, 329/3A4-2, 

329/3B8-2 & 329/3B9-2 Block No.001 at Vadanappally Desam & Village, Vadanappally SRO, Chavakkad Taluk, Thrissur District, Kerala owned by BRD Car World Ltd. 

Further, the loan has been guaranteed by the personal guarantee of Promoter Mr. C. C. William Varghese and Director Mr. C. C. Simon. 

Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date. 

The quarterly returns /statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts. 

 
The company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

There is no continuing default/default as on the date of balance sheet in repayment of loans and interest. 

 

3.05 Trade payables 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.5.1 

 

 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 

accounting year 
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 2,056,473.12 11,623.00 

Interest due on above - 
 

Total 2,056,473.12 11,623.00 
 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier 

beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 

year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006. 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually 

paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 

- - 
 

- - 

2,689.18 - 

 
- - 

Note: Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the management. 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 2,056,473.12 11,623.00 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 318,293,858.76 130,979,081.24 

Total 320,350,331.88 130,990,704.24 

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 
 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 
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3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

 

 
 

 
3.5.2 Trade payables ageing schedule for the years ended as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as follows : 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.06  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.07  

 
 

 
(a) Provision for Employee Benefit 
- Gratuity 7,562,857.83 6,984,555.00 

(b) Provision - Others 

- Provision for Income Tax 
 

- 
 

- 

Total 7,562,857.83 6,984,555.00 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

March 31, 2025 

Undisputed Trade payables: 
- Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 

- Outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 

 
 

 
2,056,473.12 

317,451,537.76 

 
 
 

 
660,056.00 

 
 
 

 
132,265.00 

 
 
 

 
50,000.00 

 
 

 
2,056,473.12 

318,293,858.76 

Disputed dues: 
- Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 

- Outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

Total 319,508,010.88 660,056.00 132,265.00 50,000.00 320,350,331.88 

March 31, 2024 

Undisputed Trade payables: 
- Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 

- Outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 

 
 

 
11,623.00 

130,801,801.24 

 
 

 

- 

127,280.00 

 
 

 
- 

- 

 
 

 

- 

50,000.00 

 
 

 
11,623.00 

130,979,081.24 

Disputed dues: 
- Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 

- Outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

Total 130,813,424.24 127,280.00 - 50,000.00 130,990,704.24 

Other current liabilities 

 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

 
(a) Other Payables 

- Statutory remittances (Refer Note (i) below) 

- Expenses Payable 

- Advance from Customers 

- Advance received for sale of Land 

- Other Payable 

 

 
85,480,701.67 

 

 
92,915,799.36 

19,096,950.69 22,819,135.47 

122,408,449.49 127,896,356.52 

- 5,190,000.00 

19,522,684.11 14,086,104.73 

Total 246,508,785.96 262,907,396.08 

Note (i) Statutory dues includes provident fund, employees state insurance, withholding taxes. 

 
Short-term provisions 

 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 
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3.09  Deferred Tax Assets /(Liability) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.12 

 
 

 
- Stock-In-trade - Vehicles 612,034,595.92 494,920,654.08 

- Accessories 20,738,881.46 13,790,914.33 

- Spare Parts 17,584,550.15 13,228,655.96 

- Stock In Transit 5,736,781.51 6,269,777.21 

Total 656,094,809.04 528,210,001.58 

Traded goods and finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. Traded goods cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred 

in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 

  

- On difference between book balance and tax balance of PPE - - 

- Others - - 

Deferred Tax Asset 
  

- On difference between book balance and tax balance of PPE 7,233,518.00 8,874,946.00 

- Others 43,896,900.00 43,112,850.00 

Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 51,130,418.00 51,987,796.00 

 
Long-term loans and advances 

 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

 
(a) Loans and advances to related parties 

 
(b) Other Advances - Unsecured, considered good 

Balances with government authorities 

- Income Tax refund receivable 

 
- 

 
- 

 
26,831,394.00 

 
26,831,394.00 

Total 26,831,394.00 26,831,394.00 

 
Other non-current assets 

 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

 
(a) Long Term Trade Receivables 

 
- 

 
- 

(b) Security Deposits 
  

Unsecured, considered good 27,269,420.00 26,648,499.00 

Total 27,269,420.00 26,648,499.00 

 
Inventories: (at the lower of cost and net realisable value) 

 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 
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3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

 
3.13 Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are initially recognised at transaction price as they do not contain a significant financing component. 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

 

- - 

22,775,318.60 23,148,431.19 

- - 

- - 
 

22,775,318.60 23,148,431.19 
 

 

Total 32,967,206.00 24,658,548.17 
 

 
Notes: 

i. No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other 

receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. 

ii. Trade receivables are generally non-interest bearing and are on terms of 0 to 60 days, however the same vary from for each customer on basis of agreed terms. 

They are recognised at their original invoice amount which represent their fair value on initial recognition. 

3.13.1 The trade receivables ageing schedule for the years ended as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as follows : 
 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total Less than 6 
months 

6 months - 
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 
3 years 

 
March 31, 2025 

Undisputed Trade receivables: 

- Considered good 22,775,318.60 8,024,661.41 1,337,475.99 605,188.00 224,562.00 32,967,206.00 

- Considered doubtful - - - - - - 

Disputed Trade Receivables: 

- Considered good - - - - - - 

- Considered doubtful - - - - - - 
 

Total 22,775,318.60 8,024,661.41 1,337,475.99 605,188.00 224,562.00 32,967,206.00 

 
March 31, 2024 

Undisputed Trade receivables: 
- Considered good 23,148,431.19 670,239.98 615,315.00 - 224,562.00 24,658,548.17 
- Considered doubtful - - - - - - 

Disputed Trade Receivables: 
- Considered good - - - - - - 
- Considered doubtful - - - - - - 

 

Total 68,699,068.39 16,719,562.80 3,290,266.98 1,210,376.00 673,686.00 24,658,548.17 

Other Trade receivables 

Secured, considered good 

Unsecured, considered good 

Doubtful 
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables 

 

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due for payment 

Unsecured, considered good 

Doubtful 
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables 

 

10,191,887.40 1,510,116.98 

- - 
- - 

10,191,887.40 1,510,116.98 
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3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

 
3.14 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are cash, balances with bank and short-term (twelve months or less from the date of placement), highly liquid investments that 

are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.15  

 
 

 
(a) Loans and advances to related parties - - 

(b) Other Loans and Advance - Unsecured, considered good 
  

Balances with government authorities 
- TDS, TCS and Advance Income Tax 

 
9,108,019.90 9,698,603.82 

- GST Receivables 106,497,049.42 129,092,428.62 

Loans and advances to employees 142,064.00 223,189.00 

Others (Prepaid Expenses and other advances ) 26,105,136.59 37,490,939.25 

Total 141,852,269.91 176,505,160.69 

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received   

In line with Circular No 04/2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 10/03/2015, loans given to employees as per the Company’s policy are not considered 

for the purposes of disclosure under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
3.16 Other current assets 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

 
(a) Others 

- Other receivables 55,281,584.08 27,599,701.22 

- Stock of Stationary items and other consumables 6,873,140.00 5,346,001.00 

Total 62,154,724.08 32,945,702.22 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 

 
(a) Balances with banks: 

- In current accounts 

 
(b) Cash in Hand 

 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

 
(c) Other Earmarked Deposits 

In Fixed Deposits Accounts 

 

 
18,800,360.95 

 
3,840,928.00 

 

 
20,112,825.84 

 
2,426,287.88 

22,641,288.95 22,539,113.72 

 

 
1,050,000.00 

 

 
1,050,000.00 

Total 23,691,288.95 23,589,113.72 

 
Short-term loans and advances 

 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 

2025 2024 
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3.17 Revenue from operations 

 
Particulars 

Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 
 
 

 

 
3.17.1 

 
Details of products sold 

 
Particulars 

Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 

 

Total 3,339,231,627.12 3,277,139,194.05 

3.18 Other income 

 
Particulars 

Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 

 

 

Total 529,906,382.49 426,721,947.44 
 

Sale of products 3,339,231,627.12 3,277,139,194.05 

Total 3,339,231,627.12 3,277,139,194.05 
 

Sale of products comprises of :- 

- Vehicles 

- Accessories 

- Spare parts 

- Warranty spares 

- Scrap sales 

- Vas sales 

- Super Carry Container Sales 

 

2,953,057,017.21 

86,523,706.46 

273,050,412.39 

6,496,483.27 

8,559,905.70 

10,160,458.03 

1,383,644.06 

 

2,927,293,838.21 

82,948,195.94 

241,024,738.04 

7,954,894.47 

7,072,687.47 

10,844,839.92 

- 

 

Interest Income 
Interest on income tax refund 

 

1,454,243.74 
- 

 

1,828,724.44 
319,480.00 

 

Other non-operating income (Net of expenses directly attributable to such income). 

Commission received 

Discount received 

Finance payouts received 

Labour charges received 

MSIL incentive received 

Profit on sale of assets 

Sundry credits & advances w/back 
Other income 

 

42,541,581.29 

28,356,728.32 

20,207,670.42 

270,045,412.96 

122,881,744.40 

9,937,601.48 

7,289,752.77 
27,191,647.11 

 

35,951,963.40 

18,211,014.86 

20,132,400.89 

249,953,271.75 

72,010,615.62 

1,669,649.47 

7,941,957.78 
18,702,869.23 
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3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

 
3.19 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 
 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 

 

Total 3,267,906,892.62 3,293,684,058.58 

3.20 Changes In inventories of finished goods, Work in progress and Stock In Trade 

 
Particulars 

Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 
(a) Inventories at the end of the year 

Finished Goods 

- Vehicles 

- Accessories 

- Spare Parts 

- Stock In Transit 

[A] 
 

 
494,920,654.08 240,126,412.96 

13,790,914.33 12,513,012.66 

13,228,655.96 13,399,289.75 

6,269,777.21 4,997,533.02 
 

[B] 528,210,001.58 271,036,248.39 

Net decrease/(increase in inventories) of finished goods, work-in progress and 

traded goods [B-A] 
(127,884,807.46) (257,173,753.19) 

3.21 Employee benefit expenses 

 
Particulars 

Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 

 

Total 289,394,801.60 262,207,684.25 

3.22 Finance cost 

 
Particulars 

Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 

 
55,181,252.38 48,112,999.76 

 

TOTAL 55,181,252.38 48,112,999.76 
 

612,034,595.92 494,920,654.08 

20,738,881.46 13,790,914.33 

17,584,550.15 13,228,655.96 

5,736,781.51 6,269,777.21 

656,094,809.04 528,210,001.58 

 (b) Inventories at the beginning of the year 

Finished Goods 

- Vehicles 

- Accessories 

- Spare Parts 

- Stock In Transit 
 

Interest expense on 
Borrowings 

 

- Vehicles 
- Accessories 
- Spare Parts 

 

2,955,533,442.83 
106,297,443.42 
206,076,006.37 

 

3,024,663,820.13 
91,567,301.84 

177,452,936.61 

 

Salaries, wages and allowances 
Contributions to provident and other funds 
Staff welfare Expenses 

 

259,417,183.36 
24,291,122.00 

5,686,496.24 
 

235,791,113.99 
20,514,025.46 

5,902,544.80 
 



 

 
 

B R D CAR WORLD LIMITED 
(All amounts in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 
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3.23 Depreciation and amortization expenses 
 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 

 

Total 32,133,073.51 28,252,622.38 

Refer note 2 and 3.08 for accounting policy on depreciation and amortisation cost 

 
3.24 Other expenses 
 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 
Advertisement & Publicity 7,501,378.13 7,913,869.34 
Bank Charges 2,024,739.01 2,228,612.06 
Body Building Expenses 1,309,066.75 - 
Branch Inauguration Expenses 136,217.00 408,473.00 
Brokerage & Commission 8,272,331.43 11,458,426.82 
Demo Expenses 1,942,338.93 2,212,222.00 
Discount Allowed 93,235,473.63 44,780,521.25 
Donation 183,390.00 248,611.00 
House Keeping & Security Charges 5,138,877.68 4,330,112.13 
Insurance Charges 2,632,829.40 2,787,338.20 
Income Tax Paid - 16,038.42 
Internal Auditing Expenses 148,761.00 139,705.00 
Loading & Unloading Charges 513,241.00 285,744.00 
Loss on disposal/sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  - 
Miscellaneous Expenses 138,380.56 151,368.11 
MSIL Offer - Dealer Contribution 3,259,447.00 3,397,597.76 
Office Expenses 2,438,921.14 2,018,263.40 
Other Expenses 164,611.53 550,973.00 
Payment to Auditors * 350,000.00 350,000.00 
PDI Expenses 421,100.00 374,080.00 
Pick & Drop Expense 3,633,241.25 3,173,752.00 
Postage & Courier Charges 1,035,440.00 826,376.50 
Power & Fuel 28,858,276.75 26,571,078.37 
Printing & Stationery 3,656,887.97 3,522,157.21 
Professional and legal Fees 8,399,500.00 3,514,083.01 
Rates and Taxes 5,862,476.63 7,304,247.44 
Recruitment & Training Expense 1,142,267.00 1,036,376.54 
Refreshment Expenses 5,207,846.00 4,667,111.50 
Refurbishment expenses 10,414,476.81 10,003,392.21 
Registration Charges 130,535.00 147,880.00 
Rent 20,624,468.00 15,291,622.00 
Repairs & Maintenance 22,942,377.67 22,826,555.79 
RTO and Other direct expenses 1,589,373.00 1,310,763.00 
Sales Promotion Expenses 14,837,478.18 11,320,546.52 
Service Charges Paid 922,881.70 863,894.51 
Software Charges 3,561,306.64 2,732,441.07 
Sundry Debits W/Off 3,218,892.28 3,078,065.45 
Telephone Charges 2,633,619.68 2,446,910.78 
Travelling Expenses 7,305,011.43 8,135,425.50 
Transportation Charges 331,857.00 - 
Uniform Expenses 1,584,888.72 1,094,771.73 
Value Added Services 6,096,475.00 7,309,700.00 
Warrant Fee(MSIL) 1,132,000.00 968,260.00 
Workshop Expenses 63,519,301.26 55,687,934.32 

Total 348,451,982.16 277,485,300.94 

Depreciation 
Amortisation 

 

32,133,073.51 
- 

 

28,252,622.38 
- 

 



 

 
 

B R D CAR WORLD LIMITED 
(All amounts in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

  
3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

 
3.24.1 Payment to auditors comprises of : 
 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 As auditors - statutory audit 225,000.00 225,000.00 
 For taxation matters 65,000.00 65,000.00 
 For other services 60,000.00 60,000.00 
 Total 350,000.00 350,000.00 
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3.08  Property Plant and Equipments 

Particulars Land Building Plant & Equipments Furniture & Fittings Electrical Fittings Motor Vehicle Computer Total 

 
Cost: 

As at April 1, 2023 

Additions 

Disposals 

As at March 31, 2024 

Additions 

Disposals 

 

 
150,968,826.11 

- 

5,087,348.98 

 

 
282,173,819.62 

7,857,734.96 

- 

 

 
9,410,455.00 

2,494,051.00 

640,000.00 

 

 
35,076,888.15 

2,900,189.34 

88,500.00 

 

 
125,773,190.71 

3,168,823.44 

- 

 

 
33,321,020.52 

8,783,901.17 

6,008,359.52 

 

 
22,664,040.94 

2,730,643.00 

- 

 

 
659,388,241.05 

27,935,342.91 

11,824,208.50 

145,881,477.12 

- 

6,780,342.86 

290,031,554.58 

88,807,265.20 

- 

11,264,506.00 

18,305,849.00 

37,888,577.49 

2,669,693.00 

10,170.00 

128,942,014.15 

6,749,867.48 

- 

36,096,562.17 

7,969,092.75 

2,956,101.78 

25,394,683.94 

3,231,615.00 

- 

675,499,375.45 

127,733,382.43 

9,746,614.64 

At March 31, 2025 139,101,134.26 378,838,819.78 29,570,355.00 40,548,100.49 135,691,881.63 41,109,553.14 28,626,298.94 793,486,143.24 

 
Depreciation 

As at April 1, 2023 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 

As at March 31, 2024 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 

 

 
- 

 

 
119,319,706.06 

11,746,357.85 

- 

 

 
8,046,093.13 

397,410.56 

496,350.38 

 

 
27,047,853.87 

2,509,315.96 

32,924.18 

 

 
94,413,372.95 

7,505,091.60 

- 

 

 
22,222,758.56 

5,191,273.60 

5,158,036.41 

 

 
20,875,831.35 

903,172.81 

- 

 

 
291,925,615.92 

28,252,622.38 

5,687,310.97 

- 131,066,063.91 

12,467,194.09 

7,947,153.30 

1,584,653.77 

29,524,245.65 

2,678,063.35 

9,661.50 

101,918,464.56 

6,922,154.60 

22,255,995.75 

6,040,867.96 

3,102,562.31 

21,779,004.16 

2,440,139.74 

314,490,927.33 

32,133,073.51 

3,112,223.81 

At March 31, 2025 - 143,533,258.00 9,531,807.07 32,192,647.50 108,840,619.16 25,194,301.39 24,219,143.91 343,511,777.02 

 
Net book value 

At April 1, 2023 

At March 31, 2024 

 

 
150,968,826.11 

145,881,477.12 

 

 
162,854,113.56 

158,965,490.67 

 

 
1,364,361.87 

3,317,352.70 

 

 
8,029,034.28 

8,364,331.84 

 

 
31,359,817.76 

27,023,549.59 

 

 
11,098,261.96 

13,840,566.42 

 

 
1,788,209.59 

3,615,679.78 

 

 
367,462,625.13 

361,008,448.13 

At March 31, 2025 139,101,134.26 235,305,561.78 20,038,547.93 8,355,452.99 26,851,262.47 15,915,251.75 4,407,155.03 449,974,366.22 
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3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

3.08 Intangible Assets 

Particulars Software Total 

Cost: 
   

As at April 1, 2023 4,720.00 4,720.00 
Additions - - 
Disposals - - 
As at March 31, 2024  4,720.00 4,720.00 
Additions - - 
Disposals - - 
At March 31, 2025 4,720.00 4,720.00 

Depreciation 
   

As at April 1, 2023 4,720.00 4,720.00 
Charge for the year - - 
Disposals - - 
As at March 31, 2024  4,720.00 4,720.00 
Charge for the year - - 
Disposals - - 
At March 31, 2025 4,720.00 4,720.00 

Net book value 
  

At April 1, 2022 - - 
At March 31, 2023 - - 
At March 31, 2024 - - 
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3.08  Work in Progres 

Particulars Electrical Fittings Plant & Machinery Building Compound Wall Total 

Cost:      

As at April 1, 2023  - - 515,006.00 515,006.00 

Additions  - 24,447,387.96 913,440.00 25,360,827.96 

Capitalised  - 6,287,460.96 1,428,446.00 7,715,906.96 

As at March 31, 2024  - 18,159,927.00 - 18,159,927.00 

Additions 10,910,938.00 1,146,618.00 65,451,390.20 - 77,508,946.20 

Capitalised - - 83,611,317.20 - 83,611,317.20 

As at March 31, 2025 10,910,938.00 1,146,618.00 - - 12,057,556.00 

 

Note: CWIP aging schedule 

As at March 31, 2025 

CWIP 

 

 
Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

Projects in Progress 12,057,556.00 - - - 12,057,556.00 

Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - - - 
 

 

As at March 31, 2024 

 
CWIP 

 
Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

Projects in Progress 18,159,927.00 - - - 18,159,927.00 

Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - - - 
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3.25 Income tax 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are: 

3.25.1 Statement of profit and loss: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.25.2  

 
 

 
TDS, TCS & Advance Income Tax 
Provision For Income Tax 

9,108,019.90 
- 

9,698,603.82 
- 

Liabilities for Current Tax (net) 9,108,019.90 9,698,603.82 

Other Notes 
- During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has recognised deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable, based on the future 

profitability and projections of the Company, that taxable profits will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 

- The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax 

liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. 

3.26 Earnings Per Share 

The company reports basic and diluted Earnings per Share in accordance with AS 20. Basic Earnings per equity share have been 

computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year. 

Diluted Earnings per share have been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity 

shares outstanding at the end of the year. 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 
 

Profit after tax 3,097,436.80 44,732,873.78 

Weighted average number of shares 19,302,900 19,302,900 

Nominal value of shares (₹) 10.00 10.00 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (₹) 0.16 2.32 

 
3.27 Employee benefits 

Details of Employee Benefits : Disclosures required under Accounting Standard 15 – Employee Benefits ( Revised 2005) 

a. Defined contribution plans : 
During the Year, the following amounts have been recognised in the Profit and Loss account on account of defined contribution plan 

 

Employers Contribution to Provident Fund 13,591,064.00 12,865,962.00 
Employers Contribution to Employee's State Insurance 3,977,691.00 3,668,766.00 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

Current income tax: 
Current income tax charge 
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 

Total Current Tax 

Deferred tax: 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Income Tax reported in the statement of profit and loss 

 
Liabilities for Current Tax (net): 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

- 

 
857,378.00 

- 

 
6,559,355.00 

857,378.00 6,559,355.00 

 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 
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3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

 
b. Defined benefit plans- Gratuity:  

i. Components of employer expense  

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

Current service cost 

Interest cost 

Expected return on plan assets 

Past Service Cost 

Actuarial losses/(gains) 

5,532,072.00 

2,313,514.00 

(1,820,638.00) 

- 

554,179.00 

4,988,068.00 

2,167,121.00 

(1,532,320.00) 

- 

(1,851,944.00) 

Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 6,579,127.00 3,770,925.00 

ii. Actual contribution and benefit payments for year 
 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

Actual benefit payments 
Actual contributions 

3,383,859.00 

6,000,824.00 

3,284,031.00 

5,000,000.00 

iii. Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 
 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 

Fair value of plan assets 

Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)] 

36,926,449.00 

29,363,591.00 

(7,562,858.00) 

31,910,543.00 

24,925,987.50 

(6,984,555.00) 
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet (7,562,858.00) (6,984,555.00) 

iv. Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year 
 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

Present value of DBO at beginning of the year 

Current service cost 

Interest cost 
Unrecognised past service costs 

Actuarial (gains) / losses 

Benefits paid 

31,910,543.00 

5,532,072.00 

2,313,514.00 

- 

554,179.00 

(3,383,859.00) 

29,891,329.00 

4,988,068.00 

2,167,121.00 

- 

(1,851,944.00) 

(3,284,031.00) 
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 36,926,449.00 31,910,543.00 

v. Change in fair value of assets during the year 
 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 
 

Plan assets at beginning of the year 24,925,987.50 21,677,698.50 
Expected return on plan assets 1,820,638.00 1,532,320.00 

Actual company contributions 6,000,824.00 5,000,000.00 

Actuarial gain / (loss) - - 
Benefits paid (3,383,859.00) (3,284,031.00) 

Plan assets at the end of the year 29,363,590.50 24,925,987.50 

 

The above disclosures are based on information furnished by the independent actuary and relied upon by the auditors. 

The estimates of future Salary increases, considered in the actuarial valuation, takes into account of inflation, seniority, 

promotion and other relevant factors , such as supply and demand in the employment market. 
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3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

 
3.28 Related party disclosures 

Names of related parties and related party relationship, irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not is given 

i below: 
 

Subsidiary Companies 

Entities over which KMP / Relatives of KMP 

can exercise significant influence 

 

 

Directors and Key Management Personnel 

(KMP) 

Nil 

Kalpaka Polymers And Exports Limited 

Jibe Industries Private Ltd 

Rajputana Investments and Finance Ltd 

Kalpaka Nidhi Ltd 

Jijin Chanayil Surendran Managing Director 
Ragesh Pananghat Menon Chief Financial Officer 
Aiswarya Ambika 

Nandu Chandramohan 

Kanjirathinkal Vincent Viju 

Company Secretary (from 26.03.2022 to 
23.04.2024) 
Company Secretary (from 27.06.2024 to 
23.06.2025) 

Company Secretary (from 25.08.2025) 

Relatives of Key Management Personnel 

(KMP) 

Sooryalakshmi Salikumar - Spouse of Managing Director 
Sreeja Ragesh - Spouse of Chief Financial Officer 
Ann Rose Raphy - Spouse of Company Secretary 

 
 

ii Transactions with the related parties are:* 

Nature of transactions Name of the Related party Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 
 

Remuneration paid Jijin Chanayil Surendran 3,058,036.00 2,797,704.00 
 Ragesh Pananghat Menon 638,658.00 580,984.00 
 Nandu Chandramohan 483,836.00 506,100.00 

Bonus paid Jijin Chanayil Surendran 10,000.00 10,000.00 
 Ragesh Pananghat Menon 

Nandu Chandramohan 

6,000.00 

- 

6,000.00 

- 

Incentives paid Jijin Chanayil Surendran 250,000.00 200,000.00 
 Ragesh Pananghat Menon 106,575.00 99,160.00 

Commission Paid Rajputana Investments and Finance Lt 8,077,081.43 10,957,616.82 

*Notes: Above transactions with the related parties are disclosed excluding GST. 



B R D CAR WORLD LIMITED 

(All amounts in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

 

 
 

 
3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

iii Balances at the year end: Asset/ (Liability) 

Nature of transactions Name of the Related party Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

Expenses Payable Rajputana Investments and Finance Lt - (289,750.00) 
 

Notes: 
 

* The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as 
they are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole. 

* The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 

transactions. All other outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There 

have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 

2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 

2024: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and 

the market in which the related party operates. 

3.29 Transaction with non executive director 

Name Nature of Transaction Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

 
Sunny Mathew Sitting Fee 7,500.00 10,000.00 

Bahuleyan Raman Nalupurakkal Sitting Fee - 7,500.00 
Mathew Jose Sitting Fee 5,000.00 10,000.00 

 

 

3.30 Contingent liabilities and capital commitments - 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

Contingent Liabilities: - 

Claim not acknowledge as debt by the company - - 
In respect of Income tax demands where the Company has filed appeal before 

various authorities 
- - 

Guarantee and Letter of Credit issued by banker on behalf of the company 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 

Capital commitments :- 

Estimated amount of the contract to be executed on capital account 
 

- 
 

- 

Future cash outflow in respect of above is determinable only on receipt of judgments /decision pending with various 

forums/authorities. The Company is of the opinion that the above demands are not tenable and expects to succeed in its 

appeals/defence. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material 

adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations 
 

 
3.31 Additional Informations 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

CIF Value of imports made during the year - - 
Earnings in foreign exchange - - 

Expenditure in foreign currency - - 

Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency - - 
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3 Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

3.32 Additional Regulatory Information 

Particulars Numerator Denominator Current Period Previous Period % of variance* 

Current Ratio (times) Current assets Current liabilities 0.90 1.00 -9.50% 
 

Debt-Equity Ratio 

(times) 

Debt Service Coverage 

Ratio (times)1 

Return on Equity Ratio 

(%) 

Total Debt 

(Borrowings) 

Earnings available 

for debt service 

 
Net profits after 

taxes 

 
Cost of goods sold 

Average Inventory 
or sales 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Net capital turnover 

ratio (times)3 

Revenue from 

Operations 

Purchases of stock- 

in-trade 

 
Revenue from 

Operations 

Closing trade 

receivables 

Closing Trade 

payables 

Working Capital 

(Current 

Assets - Current 

Liabilities) 

Net Profit Ratio (%) Profit after tax 
Revenue from 

Operations 

Return on Capital 

employed (%) 

 
Earning before 

Capital employed 
interest and taxes 

 

Explanation for change in the ratios by more than 25%: 

1. The debt service coverage, return on equity, net profit, and return on capital employed ratios have declined due to a significant decrease 

in profit, primarily on account of intense competition from other dealers in the market. 

2. The inventory turnover ratio has declined due to an increase in the average inventory. 

3.The increase in the creditors’ turnover ratio is primarily due to a longer average payment period in the current year compared to the 

previous year. 
4.The decline in the net capital turnover ratio is attributable to a reduction in working capital compared to the previous year. 

 

3.33 In the opinion of the management, the current assets, loans and advances shall realise the value as shown in the balance 
sheet, if realised in the normal course of business. 

3.34 Balance of some of the debtors, creditors & loans and advances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. 

3.35 Other notes as required by Schedule III of the Act are either nil or not applicable hence not disclosed. 
 

3.36 The company has a single reportable segment i.e. Trading which has similar risk & return for the purpose of AS-17 on 
‘Segment Reporting’ notified under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 as amended. The company 

operates in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic. 

 Additional Regulatory information as per MCA notification 
 

3.37 The Company doesn’t have any Immovable Property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Company. 
 

3.38 The Company doesn't hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and 
rules made thereunder and no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for the same. 

3.39 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the financial year 24-25 
 

3.40 The Company has not revalued its intangible assets during the financial year 24-25 

Inventory turnover ratio 
(times) 

Trade Receivables 

turnover ratio (times) 

Trade payables turnover 

ratio (times)2 
 

5.64 8.20 -31.23% 

101.29 132.90 -23.79% 

10.20 25.14 -59.43% 

 
-67.08 

 
12,619.26 

 
-100.53% 

0.09% 1.36% -93.20% 

6.50% 11.43% -43.12% 
 

Total Equity 1.27 1.19 6.97% 

Debt Service 1.09 1.53 -28.50% 

Average 

shareholder’s 

 

0.78% 

 

11.93% 

 

-93.49% 
equity    
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3.41 The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a wilful 

defaulter at any time during the financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when financial 

statements are approved. 

3.42 The Company doesn't have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or 

section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 
 

3.43 The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts but has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,1961(such as, search or survey or 

any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). 

3.44 The Company has not given any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related 

parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are a) repayable on 

demand; or b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 
 

3.45 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies 
(ROC) beyond the statutory period. 

 

3.46 Company has not traded/invested in crypto currency or virtual currency for the current financial year and previous year. 
 

3.47 The Company hasn’t advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

 

 Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner what so ever by or on behalf of 
the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

3.48 The Company hasn’t received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with 

the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall 

 Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner what so ever by or on behalf of 

the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

3.49 There is no indication of any impairment based on external/internal factors and hence no provision for the impairment 

loss has been recognised in terms of Accounting Standards 28-Impairment of Assets, issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

 Previous year comparatives 

3.50 Corresponding previous year figures have been regrouped/recast and reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to 
current year's classifications/disclosure to make them comparable. 

 

In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Balan and Co B R D CAR WORLD LIMITED  

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm registration number: 000340S Sd/- Sd/- 

Jijin Chanayil Surendran C.C. Simon 

Managing Director Director 

[DIN: 03305487] [DIN: 00074163] 

 
Place : Aluva Place : Thrissur 

Date : 30.08.2025 Date : 30.08.2025 

 

Sd/- 

P. Mohandas, FCA 

Partner 

Membership no: 021262 
 

Sd/- 

Ragesh Pananghat Menon 

Chief Financial Officer 

 

Sd/- 

Kanjirathinkal Vincent Viju 

Company Secretary 
[M. No. A46588] 
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